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Plaintif£, INFORMATION

s (1B U.8.C. B 371: Comspiracy]

MARLON SONGCO,

Defendant.

The United States Attorney charges:

[18 U.8.C. § 371]

A. GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

At all times relevant to this Information:

Defendant and Rehab Dynamics, Inc.

i From in or about September 2008 to in or about January
2014, defendant MARLON SONGCO (“defendant SONGCO”) was listed as the
president of Rehab Dynamics, Inc. (“Rehab Dynamics”), a California
corporation, which was located at various sites in Los Angeies and
Orange Counties, within the Central District of California.

The Medicare Program

< Medicare was a federal health care benefit program,

affecting commerce, that provided benefits to individuals who were
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over the age of 65 or disabled. Medicare was administered by the
Centers for Medicare and Medicaid Services (“CMS”), a federal ageﬁcy
under the United States Department of Health and Human Services
(“HHS”) .

3 Individuals who qualified for Medicare benefits were
referred to as Medicare “beneficiaries.” Each Medicare beneficiary
was given a Health Identification Card containing a unique
identification number (“HICN”) .

4. Health care providers who provided medical services that
were reimbursed by Medicare were referred to as Medicare “providers.”

5. CMS contracted with private companies to certify providers
for participation in the Medicare program and monitor their
compliance with Medicare standards, to process and pay claims, and to
perform program safeguard functions, such as identifying and
reviewing suspect claims.

6. To obtain reimbursement from Medicare, a prcvider had to
apply for and obtain a provider number. By signing the provider
application, the provider agreed toc (a) abide by Medicare rules and
regulations and (b) not submit claims to Medicare knowing they were
false or fraudulent or with deliberate ignorance or reckless
disregard of their truth or falsity.

7. If Medicare approved a provider’s application, Medicare
assigned the provider a Medicare provider number, which enabled the
provider to submit claims to Medicare for services rendered to
Medicare beneficiaries.

8. Medicare reimbursed providers only for services, including
physical therapy, that were medically necessary to the treatment of a
beneficiary’s illness or injury, were prescribed by a beneficiary'’'s

2
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physician or a gualified physician’s assistant acting under the
supervision of a physician, and were provided in accordance with
Medicare regulations and guildelines that governed whether a
particular service or product would be reimbursed by Medicare.

B. THE OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY

g, Beginning in or about January or February 2009 and
continuing uﬁtil at least in or about January 2014, in Los Angeles
and Orange Countiesg, within the Central District of California, and
elsewhere, defendant SONGCO, together with co-conspirators A, B, and
¢, and others known and unknown to the United States Attorney,
knowingly combined, conspired, and agreed to commit the following
offense against the United States: health care fraud, in violation of
Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347.

cC. MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

10. The object of the conspiracy was carried out, and to be
carried out, in substance, as follows:

a. Co-conspirator B would recruit defendant SONGCO to
serve as the president of Rehab Dynamics and to obtain a Medicare
provider number for Rehab Dynamics, thus enabling it to submit claims
to Medicare.

18 Defendant SONGCO and co-conspirators A and B would pay
illegal kickbacks to outside companies owned by co-conspirator C and
others in exchange for the referral of Medicare beneficiariesrto
Rehab Dynamics.

., The Medicare beneficiaries would supply their Medicare
cards, HICNs, and patient information to Rehab Dynamics.

d. As defendant SONGCO well knew, co-conspirators A and B
would hire licensed physical therapists (“PTs”), many of whom worked

3
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full-time at other employment, to perform only patient evaluations,
not follow-up treatment, for Medicare beneficiaries at Rehab
Dynamics. Those PTs would evaluate some, but not all, of the
beneficiaries and create plans of physical therapy treatment for
these beneficiaries, even though, as defendant SONGCO well knew and
intended, mény of these beneficiaries never received any physical
therapy services.

e. While at Rehab Dynamics, beneficiaries would often

receive only massage and acupuncture, services defendant SONGCO knew

were not covered by Medicare, from individuals not licensed to

perform therapy and who were provided by the outside companies that
recruited the beneficiaries.

£. Defendant SONGCO and his co-conspirators would provide
information to Accubill, including the names, HICNs, and other
patient information of the Medicare beneficiaries, as well as
falsified records that made it appear as though the beneficiaries had
received physical therapy treatments from specific PTs at Rehab
Dynamics, knowing and intending that Accubill would use this
falsified information to submit false and fraudulent claims to
Medicare for physical therapy.

g. Rehab Dynamics would receive payment from Medicare for
those false and fraudulent claims, and the payments would be
deposited into the Rehab Dynamics Business Bank Account to which
defendant SONGCO and co-conspirators A and B had joint access and
éontrol.

h. Defendant SONGCO and co-conspirators A and B would
write checks out of the Rehab Dynamics Business Bank Account to
themselves, co-conspirator C, and others.

4
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4 « Between in or about April 2009, and in or about
January 2014, Rehab Dynamics would submit approximately $6,159,910 in
fraudulent and improper claims to Medicare, primarily for physical

therapy, and obtain payment from Medicare of approximately

43,327,151,
D. OVERT ACTS

11. In furtherance of the conspiracy and to accomplish its
object, defendant SONGCO, and others known and unknown to the United
States Attorney, committed and willfully caused others to commit, the
following overt acts, among others, in the Central District of
California and elsewhere:

Overt Act No. 1: On or about November 12, 2010, defendant

SONGCO wrote a check payable to co-conspirator C for $8582.19, drawn
on the Rehab Dynamics Business Bank Account, in exchange for co-
conspirator C’s referral of Medicare beneficiaries to Rehab Dynamics.

Overt Act No. 2: On or about October 25, 2011, defendant

SONGCO caused Accubill to submit to Medicare false and fraudulent
claims for physical therapy services allegedly provided to 13
Medicare beneficiaries (comprising of more than 14 hours of purported
treatment) on October 17, 2011, by licensed PT 1, knowing that PT 1
did - not, in fact, perform those physical therapy services.

Overt Act No. 3; Between on or about April 11, 2012, and on

or about August 15, 2012, defendant SONGCO caused Accubill to submit
to Medicare false and fraudulent claims for physical therapy services
allegedly provided -to 17 Medicare beneficiaries (comprising of more
than 20 hours of purported treatment) on April 2, 2012, by licensed

PT
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2, knowing that PT 2 did not, in fact, perform those physical therapy

services.
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STEPHANIE YONEKURA

Acting United States Attorney

ROBERT E. DUGDALE
Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division

RICHARD E. ROBINSON
Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Major Frauds Section

CONSUELO WOODHEAD
Assistant United States Attorney .

Deputy Chief, Major Frauds Section

KRISTEN A. WILLIAMS
Assistant United States Attorney
Major Frauds Section
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STEPHANIE YONEKURA
Acting United States Attorney
ROBERT E. DUGDALE
Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division
BYRON J. Mclain (Cal. Bar No. 257191)
Assistant United States Attorney
Major Frauds Section '
1100 United States Courthouse
312 North Spring Street
Los Angeles, California 90012
Telephene: (213) 894-0637
Facsimile: (213) 894-6269
E-mail: Byron.mclain@usdoj.gov

Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ' No. CR 15-00049-DDP
Plaintiff, ERRATUM RE: PLEA AGREEMENT FILED
ON 2/05/2015, DOCKET ENTRY -NO. 10
V.
MARLON SONGCO,
befendant.

The government hereby files, this erratum to its Plea

Agreement, docket number 10, filed on February 05, 2015.

The government filed the attached Plea Agreement in error with

page 2 missing. Please see the complete attached Plea Agreement.
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Dated: June 18, 2015 : Respectfully submitted,

STEPHANIE YONEKURA
Acting United States Attorney

ROBERT E. DUGDALE

Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division

/s/

BYRON J. MCLAIN
Assistant United States Attorney

Attorneys for Plaintiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA
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STEPHANIE YONEKURA
Acting United States Attorney
ROBERT E. DUGDALE
Assistant United States Attorney
Chief, Criminal Division
KRISTEN A, WILLIAMS (Cal. Bar No. 263594)
Agsistant United States Attorney
Major Frauds Section
1100 United States Courthouse
312 North Spring Street
Los Angeles, California 90012
Telephone: (213) 894-0526
Pacsimlile: (213) 894-6269
BE-mail: Kristen.Williams@usdoj.gov

Attorneys for Plalntiff
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, | No. CR
. Plaintiff, ' PLEA AGREEMENT FOR DEFENDANT
MARL.ON SONGCO
V.
MARLON SONGCO,
Defendant
1. This constitutes the plea agreement between Marlon Songco

(*defendant”) and the United States Attorney’s Office for the Central
District of California (“the USAQ") in the investigation of health
care Fraud at the physical therapy company Rehab Dynamics, Inc.
("Rehab Dynamics”). This agreement is limited to the USAO and cannot
bind any other federal, state, local, or foreign prosecﬁting,
enforcement, administrative, or regulatory authorities.

DEFENDANT’ § OBLIGATIONS

2. Defendant agrees to:
a. @Give up the right to indictment by a grand jury and,

at the earliest opportunity requested by the USAO and provided by the
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Court, appear and plead guilty to a single-count information in the
form attached to this agreement as Exhibit A or a substantially
gimilar form, which charges defendant with conspiracy, in violation
of 18 U.85.C, § 371, .

b. Not contest facts agreed to in this agreement.

LG, Abide by all agreements regarding sentencing contained
in this agreemeﬁt.

d. Appear for all court appearvances, surrvender as ordered
for service of sentence, obey all conditions of any bond, and obey
any other ongoling court érder in thig matter.

e. Not commit any crime; however, offenses that would be
excluded for sentencing purposes under ﬁnitad States Sentencing '
Guidelines (“U.8.5.G." or “Sentencing Guidelineé"} 8 4A1.2(c),a£e not
within the scope of this agreement.

. Be truthf(l at all times with Pretrial Services, the

United States Probation Office, and the Court.

g. ©Pay the applicable special assessment at or before the
time of sentencing unlesg defendant lacks the ability to pay and
prioxr to'santeﬁcing submits a‘completed financial statement on a form
to be provided by the USAO.

h. Not seek the discharge of any restitution obligation,
in whole or in part, in any present or future bankruptcey proceeding.

i. Defendant understands and acknowledges that as a
result of pleading guilty pursuant to this agreement, defendant will
be excluded from Medicare, Medicald, and all Federal health care
programs. Defendant agrees to complete and execute all necessary
docunents provided by the United Stafes Department of Health and
Human Services, or any other department oxr agency of the fedaral

2
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government, to effectuate this exclusion within 60 days of receiving
the documents. This exclusion will not affect defendant's right to

apply for and recslvs benefits as a beneficisry under any Pederal

O S

health care program, lneluding Medicare and Medicald.

3. Defendant Euﬁthér agrees to cooperate fully with the USA0,
the Eedaral'Buraau of investigation, Department of Health ang Human
Services -- 0ffice of the Inspector General, and, as directed by the

USAQ, any other faderal, state, local, or forsign prosecuting,

0 o -3 oy

enforcement, administrative, or regulatory authority. This
10 Hcoopexatian requires defendant to:
11 a, Respond truthfully andlaomplstely to all gquestions
12 || that may be put to defendant, whether in interviews, before a grand
13 | jucy, or at any trial or other court proceading. '
14 ﬂ 7 b. Attend all mestings, grand jury sessions, trials ox
15 || othex préceedinga at which defendant’s presence is requested by the
16 || U8B0 or compelled by subpoena o couxﬁ ordex.
17 &, Produce voluntarily all doaumﬁnts,-records, oy other
18 [ tangible evidence relating to matters about which the USAG, or its
' 19 | designee, inquires,
20 | d, If requested to do so by the USAO, act in an
21 Jundercover capacity to the best of defendant’ s ability in connection
22 | with criminal investigations by federal, state, local, or foreign law
23 | enforcement authorities, in accordance with the express instructions
24 ||lof those law enforcement authorities, Defendant agrees not to act in |
25 | an undercover capacity, tape record any conversations, or gather any
26 || evidence except after a réquest by the USAC and in accordance with

27 [ express instructions of federal, state, local, or foreign law

28 i enforcement authorities.
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1 4, For purposes of this agreement; (1} “Cooperation
2 ||l Information” shall mean any statements made, or documents, records,
3 | tangible evidence, or other information provided, by defendant
4 || pursuant to defendant’s cooperation under this agrsement or pursuant
5 fto the letter agreement previously entexed into by the parties dated
6 lJune 13, 2014:; and (2) “Plea Information” shail mean any statements
7 [[made by defendant, undexr cath; at the guilty plea hearing and the
8 || agreed to Ffactual) hasls statement in this agrsement.
9 . THE USR0S OBI;;GATIDI\'IB
10 5, The USA0 agrees to:
il | a. Neot contest facts agreesd to in this agreement.
i2 | b, Bbide by sll agreements regarding sentencing contained
13 | in this agreement.
14 G At the time of sentencing, provided that defendant
15 |l demonstrates an acceptance of responsibility for the offense up to
16 || and ingluding the time of sentencing, recommend a two-level reduatieﬁ.
17 in the spplicabla Sentencing Guidelines offense level, purxsuant to
18 {U.8.8.6G, § 3El1.1, and recommend and, if necessary, move for an
19 jjadditional one-level reduction if available under that éeqtion. _
20 d. Recommend that defendant be sentenced to a temm of .
21 || imprisooment no higher than the low énd of the applicable Sentencing
22 [Guidelines ranga, provided that the Ofﬁ&ﬂ&&—l&fel used by the Court
23 | to determine that range is 25 or higher and provided that the Court
24 || does not dapaft downward in offense level or criminal history
25 | category, For purpogses of this agreement, the low end of the
26 | Bententing Guidelines range is that defined by the Sentencing Table
27 {{in U.8.8.G6. Chapter 5, Part A,
28 &, The USAO further agrees:
| ‘*
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a, Not to offer ss evidence in its case-in-chief in the
above-gaptioned case or any other griminal prosecution that may be
brought against defendant by the U8A0, ox in connection with any
sentencing proceeding in any criminal case that may be brought
against defendant by the UBAO, any Cooparation Information;
befendant agrees, howevar, that the USAO may use both Coaperatiéh
Information and Plea znformation: {1} to obtaln and pursve leads to
other evidencs, which evidence may be used for any purposs, including
any criminal prosecution of defendant; (2) to cross—examine defendant
should defendant testify, o to rebut any evidence offered, ox
argument or representation made, by defendant, defendant’s counsel,
or 2 witness called by dafendant in any trial, sentencing hesaring, ox
pther court proceeding; and (3) in any criminal prosecution of
defendant for false statement, abspructinn of justice, or parjury.

b. Not to use Cooperation Information against daﬁendaﬁt
at sentencing for the purpose of determining the applicable guideline
range, including the appropriateness of an upward departure, or tha
sentence ta be imposed, and to recommend to the Court that
Cooperation Information not be uged in determining the applicable
guideline range or the sentence to be imposed, Pefendant:
understands, however, thabt Cooperation Information willl be disclosed
t.0 the probation office and the Court, and that the Court may use

Cooperation Information for the purposes set forth in U.5.%.6

$ 181.8(b}) and for determining the sentence to be imposed.

., In connection with defendant’s zentencing, to bring to

the Courtfs attention bhe nature and extent of defendant's

aooperation.
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I the USAC doss not make a motion pursuant to U.8.8.6. § 5KL.1 for a

| Court doas not grant it or if the Court grants such a USAO mction_but

i
provided or intends to provide constitutes or will constitute

00049-DOC. - Document 22 - Fi

led 06/18/15 .Page 8.0f 31 Page ID #75. -

d. If the UBAO determines, in its nxclﬁsive judgment,
that defendant has both complied with defendant’s obligations under
paragraphs 2 and 3 above and provided substantial assistance to law
enforcemsnt in the prosscution or inveatigatian of another
(“*substantial assistance”), to move the Court pursuvant to U.5.5.6.
§ 5K1,1 to fix ah offense level and corresponding guideline range
below that otherWise dictgted by the sentencing guldelines, and to
recommend a term of imprisonment within this reduced range.

DEEENDANT’ & UNDERSTANDINGS REGARDING COOPERATION

7. Pefendant understands the following:

a, Any knowinﬁly false or misleading statemant by
defendant will subject defendant to prosecution for false statemant,
obstruction of justice, and perjury and will constitute a breach by
defendant of this agreement. |

b, HNothing in this agreement requires the USAC or any
other prosscuting, enforcement, administrative, orx regulatory
authority to accept any cooperation or asslstance that defendant may
offer, or to uase it in any particular way. h |

© 2. Defendant cannot withdraw defendant’s gullty plea if
reduced guldeline range or if the USAO makes such a motion and the
glects to sentence above the reduced range.
tl. AL thie time the USAD makes no agreement ox

representation as to whether any cooperation that defendant has

l substantial assistance. The decislon whether defendant has provided

{




0049-DOC: Document 22 - Filed

5/18/15 -Page 9.0of 31 .Page ID #7¢

1 | substantial assistance will regt solely within the exclusive judgment

2 flof the USAQ,

3 e, The UER0's determination whether defendant has -

4 lprovidad substantlal assistance will not depend in any way on whether

5 |l the governmant prevails at any trial or court hearing in which

6 || defendant testifies or in whicﬁ the governmant otherwise presents

7 || information resulting from defendant’s coopsration.

8 NATURE OF THE OFFENSE
9 8. pDefendant understands that for defendant to be guilty of
10 | the erdime charged in the single-count infcrﬁatiqn, that is,
11 | conspiracy, in wviolation of Title 18, United States Code, Ssction
12 {371, the foliowing must be btrue: [1) beginning in or about Janoary or
13 | PFebruary 2009 and continuing until at least in or about January 2014,
L4 ithere was an agteemeht ketween two or more pergons.tc commit health
15 I fraud, in violation of Title 18, United States Code, Section 1347;
16 || i2) the defendant became a membser of the conspiracy knowing of its
17 6bjact and intending to help accomplish it; agd {3) one of the
18 llmembers of the consplracy performed at least one overt act for the
18 [[purpose of carryying out the consplracy.
20 PENALTIES AND RESTITUTION
21 g. pafendant understands tha£ tha statutory maximum sehtence
22 Y that the Court éan imposé foxr a violatlon of Title 18, United States
23 || Code, Section 371, is: five years imprisonment; a three-~year period
24 I of supervised release; a fine of $250,000 or twice the gross gain o
25 jigross loas resulting £rom the offense, whichever is greatesty and a
26 §mandatory special assessmant of 5100,
27 10, Defendant understands that defendant will be required to
2B jjpay full restitution tw the victim(s) of the offense to which

7
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defendant is pleading guilty. Defeﬁdant agreea.that, in return for
the USAO's compliance with its obligations under this agreement, ths
Court may order rastitution to persons othex than the victim(s) of
the offenses to which defendant is pleading guilty and in amounts
gréatar than those alleged in the count to which defendant is -
pleading gullty. In partieulsr, defendant agrees that the Couri may
order restitution to any victim of any of the fglicwing for any
losses suffered by that vietim as a result of any relevant conduct,
as defined in U.8.8.G. 57151.3, in cannection with the offenses to
which dsfendant is pleading guilty. The parties currently believe
that the applicable amount of rastitution is approximately
$3,327;151, bt xaaagnize and agree that this ampunt could change
based on FPacts that come to the attention of the parties prior to
sentencing. |

11. Defendant understands that supsrvised release 15 & period
of time following imprisomment during which dafaﬁdant will be gubject
to Vaxioﬁﬁ restrictions and requirements, Defendant understands that

if defendant violates one or more of the conditions of apy supervised

I release imposed, defendant may be returned to prison for all or part

of the term of supervised release authorized by statute for the

offense that resulted in the term of $uparﬁisad release, which could

the statutory maximum stated above;

12. Defendant understands that, by pleading guilty, defendant
may be giving up valuable qovernmeht benefits an& valuable civic
rights, such as the right to vote, the right to possess a firearm,
the right to hold offlce, and the right to sarve on a.juxy;

Defendant understands that once the court accepts defendant’s guilty

8

result in defendant serving a total term of impfisanment-greater than
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plea, it will be a federal felony for defendant t§ possess a firearm
or ammunition, Dafendant understands that the convictien in this
case may also subject défendant to various other collateral
consequences, including but not limited to mandatory exclusion from

federal health care benefit programs for a minimum of five years,

Buspension or revocation of a professionsl license, and revocation of

probation, parole, or suparvised release in anothsr case. Defendant

!understands that unanticipated collateral conseguences will not serve

as grounds to withdraw defendant’s guilty plea.

13. Defendant understands that, if defendant is not a United
States citlzen, the felony conviction in this case may subject
defendant to: removal, also known zs deporiation, which may, under
soﬁe clroumstances, be mandatory: denial of citizenship; and denial
of adﬁissian to the United étates in the future. The court cannot,
and dafen@ant's attorney also may not ba able to, advise defendant
fully regarding the immigration consequences of the felony conviction
in this case, Defendant understands that unexpected Lmmigration
consequences will not serve as grounds to withdraw defendant’s guilty

plea.
FACTUAL BASIS

14, Defendant admits that defendant is, in fact, guilty of the
Offenge to which defendant iz agreeing to plead guilty. Defendant
and the USAQ agree to the statement of facts provided below and agree
that this Statament of facts is sufficisnt to support a plea of
guilty to the charge described in th&s agresment and to establish the
Sentencing Guidelines factors set forth in paragraph 16 helow but is

not meant to be a complete recitation of all facts relevant to the

06/18/15-Page 11-0of 31 Page ID#78 .
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underlying criminal conduct or all fagts known to either party that

relate to that conduct,

Background
pafendant formexly worked ss a driver for a physical therapy

W N e

[}

clinic owned by co-conspirator D.G. In or about September 2008, D.G.
and co-conspirater J.8,, both of whom were femiliar with the physical

therapy industry, recruited defendant to open a new physical therapy

company in defendant’s name. At 4.5, and D,.G."s dixection, defendant

became the president of Rehab Dynamics Inc. (“Rehab Dynamivs”), a

o = « R I+ - S 5

company that purported to provide physical therapy services, and
11 [iopened a bank account for Rehab Dynamics, listing himself, J.3., and
12 | p.G. as signatories on the account. At J.8., and D.G.'s directien,
i3 | defendant signed a Medicare provider application, enrolling Rehab
14 § bynamice as a provider with Medicare, a federal hsalth banéfit
15 || program for individuals aged 65 and older and certain disabled
16 L persons, “B$‘§ part of that application, defendant certified that he
17 fwould only submit truthful and aecurate claims and would know and
18 || abide by all Medicara regulations. Defendant also signed a contract
18 lwith Accubill, Inc. (“Accubill”}, a medical hilling company; for it
20 [ te submit claims to Medicare for Rehab Dynamicsf

- 21 cpﬁspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud

22 Beginning Iln or about January or February 2009 and continuing
23 {until at least in or about January 2014, in Los Angeles and Orangs
24 )| Counties, within the Central District of California, and ¢lsewhers,
25 {defendant, togethey with J.3., D.G., S5.H., and others known and

26 [funknown te the United States Attorney, knowingly combined, conspired,

27 fand agreed to commit health care fraud, in vieolation of Title 18,

28 funited States Code, Section 1347.
’ 10
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Although defendant initially believed that Rehab Dynamics would

congduct business In a lawful manner; a few months after he opened tha

company, through ﬁi$ increasing famlliarity with Rehab Dynanics! day-

to-day operations, lie became aware that J,5. and D.G. were using
Rehab Dynamics to commit fraud against Medicare through the
5ubmis;imn of fraudulent claims for physical therapy that often never
pecurrad. At that point, defendant jolined in and became a Full and
willing pﬁrtiaipant in the conspiracy to commit the fraud.

In order to'cbtain Medicare beneficiaries for Rehéb'Dynamics,
pursuant to agreements primarily negotiated by J.8. and D.G.,
defendant, J.9., and D.G. paid illegal kickbacks out of the Rehab
pynamics business bank account to outaide companieg, including
companles owned by 3.H., in exchange for the referral of Medicare
beneficiaries to Rehab Dynamics for physical therapy the patients
often never received, Reshab Dynamics employed licensed physical
therepists (“PTs"), primarily hired by J.8., to provide initial
evaluations of beneficlaries. However, as defendant and his co-
conspirators well knew, some of these evaluaﬁions aid not take place
and those PTs xarely'providad treatment at any follow-up viaits,
Whilz at Rehab Dynamlcs, many of the heneficiarvies received only
maszsage and acupuncture, services defendant knew were not covered by
Medis&re, from individuals not licensed to provide physical therapy.
Those unlicensed individuals were provided by the same outsids
companies that referred the beneficiaries to Rehab Dynamic§.

Defendant sulmitted and knew others submitted te Acoubill false
information regarding’physical therapy c¢laims, intendinyg that

Rocubill would use that information to submit false and fraudulent

claims to Medicare on Rehab Dynamica’ behalf., In particular,
11
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defendant, J.8., and D.G. prepared fraudulent documentation that was
provided te Accﬁbill and retained by Rehab Dynamics in the event.of a
Medicare audit, falsely claiming (1) that PTs were providing
medically necessary physical therapy treatment, when in fact
unlicensed individuals were often providing uncoversd massage and
acupuncture, and {2) that PTs had treated patients %hay had not

treated, including treatment purportedly occurring at times at which

[ those PTs were working at other companies or werxe out of the country.

Bdditionally, as defendant learned Erom D.G. ditring thé course of
thiz conspliracy, the practice locations Rehab nynamics jdentified to
Medicare in its provider applications were actually residential
addresses designed to prevent Madicare froﬁ condocting unannounced
site visits at the actual clinic locations,

" In furtherance of the conspiracy, defendant engaged im the
following acts, among others:

® 5n pr about November 12, 2010, defendant wrote a check
payable to §.H, for $8592,19, drawn on the Rehab Dynamics
business bank account, in exchange for S.H.'s referral of
Medicare beneficiaries to Rehab Dynamics.

B On or aboul Qotober 25, 2011, ngendant'submitted, or
caused to be submitted, to Medicare fulse and fraudulent
claims for physical therapy services allegedly provided to
13 Medicars beneficiaries (comprising moxre than 14 hourg of
purported treatment) on Ootober 17, 2011, byllicenaed Pt
J.W.; knowlng that J.W, did not, in faét, parform those
physlical therapy services.

o Between on or about April 1L, 20i2 and August 15, 2012,
defendant submitted, or caused to be submitted, to Medicare

1z
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false and fraudulent claims for thsieal therapy services

allegedly provided to 17 Medicare benaficlaries (comprising
more than 20 hours of purported treatment) on April 2,
2012, by licensed PT C.P., knowing that C.P. did not, in
fact, perform those phyasical therapy serxvices,

Between iﬁ oxr about January or Fsbruary 2009 and in or about

January 2014 Rehab Dynamics submitted approximstely 56,159,910 in

il falsae and frauvdulent claims to Medicare, for which Medicare paid

approximately 53,327,151, During this same period, Rehab Dynamics
pajd more than‘$1.5 million to outside companies affilisted with 8.H.
and others for the referval of Medicare baneficlaries.
SENTENCING FACTORS

15, pefendant understands that in daﬁérmining defendant’ s
sentence the Court is reauired to calculate the applicable Sentencing
Guidelings ranges and to conglder that range, possible departures
under the Sentencing Guidelines, end the other pentencing factors set
forth in 18 ¥.9.C. § 3553(a). Defendant understands that the
Sﬁntencing.Guidalines ars advisory only, that defendant cannot have
any sxpectation of receiving a sentence within the csloulated
Sentencing Guidelines range, and that after considering the '
Sentencing Guldelines and the other § 3553(a) factors, the C@urt'will
ba frae Lo exercise itz discretion te impose any sentence 1t fimds
appropriate up te the maximom set by Qtatuta for the crime of
conviction,

i6. Defendant and the USAQ agree to the following applicable

Sentencing Guldelines factova:

13
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Base Offenss Levels 26 [U.5.8.G. §8 2X1.1{a),
2B1.1 (&) {2}, (b){LY{D),

(b) {73 {1))

Dafendant and the USAO reserve the right to argue that additional
spacific offense charatteristics, adjustments, and deparfures under
the Sentencing Guidelines are appropriate,

17, Defendant understands that there is no agreement as to
defendant’s criminal history or erlminal history catagory.

18, Defendant and the USRO alsﬁ rasexve the right to argue fox
a sentence outside the sentencing range established by the Senﬁaﬁeing
Guideliﬁes based on the factors sat forth in 18 U.S,C.r§ 3553 (a) {1},
{a) {2), {a)(3), (=) (8), and (a)(7}. ‘
| WALVER OF CONSTITUTIONAL RIGHTS

‘19, Defendant understands that by pleading guilty, defendant
gives up the following riéhts:

a. The right to persist in a plea of not guilty.

k. The xight fo a speedy and public trial by jury,

c. The right to be represented by counsel - and if
necessary have the court appoint counsel - at triasl. 7Dafendant
underétands, however, that, defendant retaing the xight to be
repressnted by counsel - and if necessary have the court appoint
counsel ~ at every other stage of the proceeding.

d, The right to be presumed innocent and to have the
burden of proof placed on the govermment to prove defendant gquilty
beyond a reasonable doubt,

&, The right to confront and gross—examine witnesses

against defendant.

14

i
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£, The right to testify and to present evidence in
opposition to the charges, lncluding the right to compel the
attendance of witnesses to testify,

g. The right not te be compelled to testify, and, if
defendant chose not to testify or present evidence, to have that
cholce not be used againgt defendant.

h. Any and all rights to pursue any affirmative defenses,

—

Fourth Amendment or Fifth Amendment élaims, and other pretrial
motions that have been filed or could be filed.
WALVER OF APPEAL OF CONVICTION

based on a claim that defendant’s guilty ple; was involuntary, by
pleading guilty defendant is waiving and giving up any right to
appeal defendant’s Génviction on the offense to which defendant is
pleadiﬁg gullty. |

LIMITED MUTUAL WAIVER OF APPEAL OF SENTENCE

Himprisonment within or below the range corresponding to an offense
level éf 25 and the criminal history category éalculated by the
Court, defendént gives wup the right to appeal all of the following:
{a} the procedures and calculations used to determise and impose any
porticn of the sentence; (b) the term of imprisonment imposed by the
Court; (¢) the fine imposed hy the court, provided it is within the
statutory maximum; (d) the amount and ferms of any restitution order,
ﬁrovidad it requires payment of no more than $3,327,151.98; (e) the
term ﬁf prebation or supervised release imposad by the Court,

provided it is within the statutory waximom; and (£) any of the

following conditions of probation or supervised relesse imposed by

15

20, Defendant understands that, with the exception of an appeal

21. Defendant agrees that, provided the Court ilmpeses a term of

PR by g
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the Court: the conditions set forth in General Orders 318, 01-05,
and/ox 05~02 of this Courty the drug testing conditions mandated by
18 U,3.C, 88 3563(a){5) and 3583{d): and the alcohol and drug use

W W N b

conditions authorized by 18 0.5.C. § 3563(b) (7).
22. The UBAO agrees that, provided all portions of the sentence

Jlaxe at oxr balow the statutory maximum specified sbove and the Counrt

inpeses a term of imﬁxisanmant within or below the range

corresponding to an offenge level of 23 and the eriminal history

W o o LT

category calculated by the Court, the USAO gilves up itm right to
10 [fappeal any portion of the sentence, with the exception that the UShO

11 § resarves the right to agppeal the amount of restitubtion ordered if

12 Jthat amount is less than §3,327,151.98.
13 RESULT OF WiTHDBAWHL_.QE GUILTY PLEA

14 23, Defendant agrees that if, after entering a guilty plea

15 fpursuant to this agreement, defendant seeks to withdraw and succeeds
16 ffin withdrawing defendant’s guilty plea on any basim other than a

17 ||claim and finding that entry into this plea agreement was

18 || involuntary, then {(a) the USA0 will be relieved of all of its

19 ||obligations undex this agreement, including in particular its

20 || obligaticns regarding the use of Cooperation Informatlon: and () in

21 jany investigation, criminal prosecution, or civil, administrative, or |
22 lregulatory action, defendant agrees that any Cooperation Information
23 Jand any evidence derived Ffrom any Cooperation Information shall he

24 || admissible against defendant, and defendant will not assert, and

25 Ihereby waives and givea uap, any claim under the United States
26 | Constitution, any statute, or any fedesral rule, that any Cooperation

27 | Information or any evidepwe derived from any Cooperation Information

28 {[ should be suppressed or ls inadmisgsible.
16
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EFFECTIVE DATE OF AGREEMENT

{ 24, This agreement is affgctive upon'signature and execution of
all regulred certifications by defendant, defendant’s counsel, and an

hesistant Unlted States Attornsy.

BREACH OF AGREEMENT

25. Defendant agrmes that if defendant, at any time afiar the
signature of this agreement and execution of all reguired

certifications by defendant, defendant’s counsel, and ap Assistant

[onited states Attorney, knowingly violates or fails to perform any of

defendant’s obligations undex this agreement (Ma breach”), the USAD
may declare thils agreement breéached. For syample, if defendant
knowingly, in an interview, before a grand jury}_or at trial, falsely
agouses ancother person of criminal conduct or falsely miniﬁizes
defendant’s own role, or the role of another, in cximi?ai conduct,
defendant will have breached this agreemenﬁ‘ 211 of defendant’s
obligations are material, a $ingie breach of this agreement is
sufficient for the USAO to declare a brmach, and defendant shall not
be deemed to have cured a bresach without the express agreement of the
Usa0 in writing. If the USAOQ declares this agreement brzached, and
the Court finds such a breach to have occurred, then:

a. If defendant has previously entered a guilty ples
pursuant to this agreement, defendant will not be able to withdraw
the guilty plea.

b.  The USAO will he relieved of all its obligations under
this agreement; in partlicular, fthe U320: (i} will no longer be bound
by any agreaments‘cancerning sentencing and will be free to seek any
sentence up te the statutory maximum for the erime to which defendant
has pleaded guiltys and (ii) will no longer be bound by any agreement

17
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1 fregarding the use of Cooperation Information and will be free to use
2 1 any Cooperation Information in any way in any investigation, criminal
3 |iprosecution, or civil, administrative, or regulatory action,
4 c, The USAO will be froe to criminally prosecute
5 | defendant for false statement, obstruction of jﬁstiee, and perjury
& llbased on any knawﬁngly false or misleading statement by defendant.
7 d, In any investigetion, criminal prosecution, or civii,
8 || administrative, or regulatory actlion: (1) defendant will pnot asserit,
9 | and heveby walves and gives up, any claim that any Cooperation
10 iInfo::maticn was obﬁained in violatlion of the Fifth Amendment
11 |lprivilege against compelled self-incrimination; and (ii) defendant
12 {agrees that any Cooperation Information and any Plea Information, as
13 llwell as any evidence derived from any Gaoperationlinfoxmétiﬁn 0r any
14 [i Plea Informatlon, shall be admissible againsﬁ defendant, énd |
15 [ deferidant will not assert, and herveby walves and glves up, any claim
16 |under the United States Constitution, any statute, Rule 410 of the
17 | Pederal Rules of Evidence, Rule 11 (f)} of the Federal Rulas of
18 | Criminal Procadure, oy any otﬁex federal rule, that any Cooperation
19 | Information, any Plea Information, or any evidence derived from ény
.20 || Cooperation Iinformation ox any Plea Information should be suppressed
21 loxr is inadmisaible,r
22 COURT AND PROBATION OFFICE NOT PARTIES
23 | 26, Defendant understands that the Court and the United States
24 Probation Office are not parties to this agreement and need nog
25 accapt any of the USAQ' s sentencing recommendations ox'the parties’
26 agreement$ to facts or sentencing factors,
27 27. Defendant undexstands that both defendant and the USAC arxe
28 || free to: (a} supplement the facts by supplying relevant information
18
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1 [fto the Unjited States Probation Office and the Court, (b).correct any

2 jand all factual misstatements relating to the Court’s Sentencing

3 | Guidelines calculations ahd determination of szentence, and {¢) argue

4 Jl on appeal and ci:llateral roview thét the Court’s Sentencing

3 [ Guidelines calculations and the sentence it chooges to impose are not
6§ lerror, although each party agrses'to maintain ite view that the

7 ffealculationg in paragraph 16 are consistent with the facts of this

8 Hcasa. Whiie this parag;apb permits both the USBAQ and defendant to

9 |l submit full and complete factual information to the United States
1¢ i Probation Offiﬁe and the Court, even if that factual information may
11 ibe viewed as in&on$isteﬁt with the facts agreed to in this agreement,
12 gthia paragraph does not affect defendant’s and the USRO’s obligations
13 not to contest the facts agreed to in this agreement. '
14 28. Defendant understands that even if the Court ignores any
15 {l sentencing récommendation, tinds factes or reacheg conclusions
16 jdifferent from those agreed to, and/or imposes any sentence up to the
17 {| maximum established bg gtatute, defendant c&nnat, far.that reéson,
18 Jjwithdraw defendant’s guilty plea, and defendant will remaln bound to
19 || fulfill all dafendant;s obligations under this agreement. Defendant
20 i| understands that ne ona -- not the prosacutoer, defendant’s attorney,
21 {lor the Court ~-- wan make a binding predictlon ox promise regarding
22 | the sentence defendant will recelve, except that it will be within
23 || the statutory maximum, b
24 NG ADDITIONAL AGREEMENTS
25 28, Defendant understands that, except as set forth hageiu, |
26 i there are no promises, understandingé, or agreements between the U3A0
27 lland defendant or defendant’s attorney, and that no additional

28

19
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promise, understanding, or agreement may be entered into unless in a
writing signed by all parties or on the xecord in couxt.

PLEA AGREEMENT PART OF THE GUITTY PLEA HEARING

30. 'The parties agree that this agreement will be considered

entire agreement had been read into the record of the proceeding.
AGREED AND ACCEPTED
UNITED STATES ATTORNEY’S OFFICE

FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF
CALIPORNIA

ANDRE BIROTTE JR.

Date
1/@’/15”
Date
e 1S
WICHARD GOLDMAN S Datq |
Attorney for Defendant Marlon ,
Songeo

20
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CERTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT

I have read this agreement in its entirety. T have had enough
time to review and consiéer this agreement, and I have carefully and
thoroughly discuased every part of it with my atterney. I understand
the terms of this agreement, and I vciuntarily'agree to those terms,
I have discussed the evidence with my sttorney, and my attorney has
advised me of my rights, of possible preﬁrial motians‘that'might be
filed, of possible defenses that might be asserted either prior to or
at trial, of the sentenaing factors set faxth in 18 U‘s;c. 5 355${a),
of relevant Sentencing Guidelines proviaions, and of the conseguences
of entering into this agreement, No promises, inducemants, or
representations of any kind have been made to me other than those
contained in this agreement. No one has threatened or forced me in
any way to enter inte this agreement. I am satisfied with thé

re?resantation of my attorney in this matter, and I am pleading

| quilty'because I am guiliy of the charges and wish to take advantage

of the promises set forth in this agresment, and not for any othez

Tadson.

vy | g/
MARLON SONGCO Date -
Pefendant

21
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CERTIFICATION OF DEFENDANT'S ATTORNEY

I am Marlon Songeo’s attorney. I have carefully and thoroughly
discussed svery part of this agreement with my c¢llent. Fuarther, I

have fully advised my ¢lient of his rights, ¢f possible pretrial

[ motions that might be flled, of possible defenses that might be

asserted aither prior to or at trial, of the sentencing factors set
forth in 18 U.8.C. § 3553{a), of relevant Sentencing Guidelinss

] . . .

provisions, and of the consequences of entexing inte this agreement,

To my knowledge: no promises, inducenents, o representations of any

I kind have been made to my client ether than those contsined in this

agresment; no one has threatened or forced my client in any way to

entex into this agreement; my clienh’s deeision to enter inbke this

| agreement is an informed and voluntary one; and the factual basis set

———

forth in this agreement is sufficient to support my client’s entry of

a guilty plea suant to this agreement.,

]

Yl _)&rw*&* , i I é%*ﬁ[ 3 J:“~ _
RICHARD GOLDMAN

Attorney for Defendant Marlon
gongdco

22
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1
2
3
4
5
&
7
8 UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
9 A FOR THE CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
10 § UNITED STATES OF AMERICA, ~ CR No.
11 plaintiff, INFORMATION
12 v, | [18 U.S.C. § 371: Conspiracy]

13 || MARLON SONGCO,

C 1z Defandant .

15

16 The Uniped States abtorney charges:
17 {1 U.5.C, § 371]

18 A,  GENERAL ALLEGATIONS

19 At all times relevant to this Information:
20 0. pefendant and Rehab Dynamics, Inag,
21 1. From in or about September 2008 to in or about January

22 || 2014, defendant MARLON SONGCO (“defendant BONGCO”) was listed as the
23 || president of Rehab Dynamicg, Ine, {“Rehab Dynamics”), a California
24 coﬁperation, which was located at varlous sites in Log Angeias énd
25 Oraﬁge Counties.

26 f Tha Medicare Frogram

27 2. Medicare was a federal haalth gars benefit program,

28 [laffecting commerce, that provided benefits to individuals who were
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ovar the age of 65 or disabled. Medlcare was administered by the
Centers for Medicare and Medicald Services (“CM8"), a federal agency
j under the United States Depariment of Health and Human Services |
(“HHS") . | -

3. Individuals who qualified for Medicare benefits were
referred to as Medicare “beneficiaries.” Each Medicare benefioiary
was given a Health Identification Card containing a unique
ideﬁtiﬁication number {“HICH*}.

4. Health care providers who provided medical services that
were reimburged by Medlcaras were referred to as Medicare “providers.

5. CM8 contracted with private companies bto gertify pioviﬁars
for participation in the Medicare program and menitor thelx
compliance with Medicare standards, to procaaé and pay claimg, and to
| pexrform program safeguard functions, such as identifying'and
reviewing suspect clalms. | | _

6. To obtain reimbursewent Ffrom Medicare, a provider had to
apply for and obtain a provider mumber. By signing the provider
application, the provider agreed to (a) abide by Medicare rules and
regulations and (b) not submlt ¢laims to Medlicare knowlng they were
false or fraudulent ox with deliberate ignorance or rackless
disregard of their truth or falsity.

7. If Medicare approved a provider’s application, Medicare
assigned the provider a Medicare provider numbéy, which enabled the
provider to gubmlt claims ko Medicare for services rendered to
Medicare beneficiaries. ‘

. Medlceare reinbursed providers only for services, including
physical therapy, that were medically necessary Lo the treatment of a
beneficiary’s illness or injury, wérﬁ prescribed by a bensficlary's

2
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physician or a qualified physician's assistant acting under the

supervision of a physician, and were provided in accordance with
Medicare regulations and guidelines that governed whether a
particular service or product would be reiwmbursed by Medicars.

B, THE OBJECT OF THE CONSPIRACY

9, Beginning in or about Janvary orx February 2009 and
“cantinuing until at least in or about January 2014, in Los Angeles
and Orangs Counties, within the Central District of California, and
slpewhere, defendant SONGCD, together with J.5., D.G., 8.H., and
others known and unknown to the United States Attorney, knowingly
combined; congpired, and agreed to commit the following ofﬁense
dgainst the United States, namely, health care fraud, in violation of
Title 18, United 8tates Code, Section 1347,

.C.  MANNER AND MEANS OF THE CONSPIRACY

10, The object of the conepliracy was cayried out, and o be
carried out, in substaice, as Follows:

a. co-conspirator 1.4, would recruit defendant SONGCQ to
serva as the president of Rehab Dynamics and to obtain a Medicare
pxbviﬂer'number for Rehab Dynamicg, enabling it to submit ¢laimse to
Medicare. . _ |

b, Defendant SONGCO, J.8., and 1.G. would pay illegal
kickbacks to outside companies owned by 5.H. and others in exchange
for the referral of Medicare beneficiaries to Rehab Dynamics.

¢. The Medicare beneficiaries would supply their Medicare
cards, HICHg, and patient informetion to Rehab Dynamics,

i 4. As defendant SONGCC well knew, J.8. and D.G. would

hire licensed physical therapists ("PTs”), many of whom worked f£ull-

time abt other employment, to perform ouly patient evaluations, not

a
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!l follow-up treatment, for Medicare beneficiaries at Rehab Dynamics,

Those PTs would evaluate some, but not all, of the beneficiaries and
create plans of physical therapy treabtment, even bthough, as defendant
SONGCO well knew and intended, wany of the beneficlaries never
racelved any physical therapy services, |

_ @, While at Rehab Dynamics, benefileiaries would often
racelve only wmassage and agupuncture, services defendant. SONGCO knaew
were not coverad by Medicare, from individuals not licensed to
perform therapy and whé ware provided by the outslde companies thatb
recruited the bensficiaries.

_ £, Defendant SONGCO and his d@wconspiratars would provide
information to Accubill, inciuding the names, HICNs, and other
patient information of the Medicare beneficiaries, as well as
falgifled records that made it appear as though the beneficiaries had

racaived physical therapy treatments from specific PTe ab Rehab

‘ﬁynamics, knowing and intending that Accubill would use the

information to submit false and fravdulent claims to Madicare for
physical therapy. '

q. Rehab Dynamics would receive payment from Medicare fox
those false and frauvdulent claims, and the payments would bs
deposited into the Rehab Dynsmics Business Bank Account to which
defendant SONGCO, J.8,, and D.G. had joint access and control.

h, Defendant SCNGCO, J.5., and D.G, would write checks
out of the Rehab Dynamics Business Bank Account to themselves, §.H.,
and othersg, |

i. Between in or abeut April 2009, and in or about

January 2014, Rehab Dynamice would submib approximately $6,159,510 in
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¢laims to Medicare, primarxily for physical therapy, and obtaln

paymaﬁt from Medicare of approximately 53,327,151,

D.  OVERT AcTg

| 11. In furtherance of the congpiracy and to accomplish its
objact, defendant‘SONGcc, and others known and unknown to the United
Stabkes Attorney, committad and willfully caused others td commlt, the
following overt acts, among others, in the Central District of
California and elsawhers: |

Overt Ack No, 1! O or about November 12, 2010, defendant

SONGCO wrote a check payable to 2.H. for $8582.19, drawn on the Rehab

Dynamics Bumsiness Bank Auvcount, in exchangs for $.H.'s refarral of

I Madicare benefielariss to Rehab Dynamics.

Overt Act No. 2: On or about Cotober 25, 2011, defendant

SONGCO caused Accubill to submit to Medicare false and fraudulent
claims for physical thexapy services allegadiy provided to 13
Medicare benefiviaries {comprising more than 14 hours of pu&ported
treatment) on October 17, 2011, by licensed PT J.W., knowing that
J.W. did not, in fact, perform those physical therapy serviceé.

Cvert act No, 3: Betwsen on or aboub April 11, 2012, and ﬂﬁ.

pr about August 15, 2012, desfendant SONGCO cauged Accubill to submit

to Medicaxe false and fraudulent claims for physical therapy services

allegedly provided to 17 Medicare beneficiaries (comprising more than

{20 hours of purported treatment) on April 2, 2012, by licensed PT
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UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
CENTRAL DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA
CRIMINAL MINUTES -- CHANGE OF PLEA

Case No. CR 15-00049 DDP : Date: June 22, 2015

PRESENT: HONORABLE DEAN D. PREGERSON, JUDGE

John A. Chambers Maria Bustillos_ Byron J. Mclain
Courtroom Deputy : : Court Reporier Asst. U.S. Attorney
U.S.A. vs (Dits listed beiow) Attorneys for Defendants
1) MARLON SONGCO _ 1) Richard D. Goldman

present on bond . : present appointed

PROCEEDINGS: PLEA

Court and counsel confer re the plea of Guilty. Defendant moves to plea Guilty to the Information.
Defendant now enters a plea of Guilty to the Single Count Information. The Court questions the
defendant regarding the plea of Guilty and finds a factual and legal basis for the plea; waivers of
constitutional rights are freely, voluntarily and intelligently made; plea is provident; plea is accepted
and entered.

The Court refers the defendant to the Probation Office for the preparation of a presentence report and
continues the matter to February 8, 2016 at 1:30 p.m., for sentencing. The Court vacates the court
and/or jury trial date.

Counsel are notified that Federal Rule of Criminal Procedure 32(b)(6)(B) requires the parties to
notify the Probation Officer, and each other, of any objections to the Presentence Report
within fourteen (14) days of receipt. Alternatively, the Court will permit counsel to file such
objections no later than twenty-one (21) days before Sentencing. The Court construes
"objections” to include departure arguments. Requests for continuances shall be filed no
later than twenty-one (21) days before Sentencing. Strict compliance with the above is
mandatory because untimely filings impede the abilities of the Probation Office and of the
Court to prepare for Sentencing. Failure to meet these deadlines is grounds for sanctions.

cc: P.O.& P.S.A.L A,

CR-8 (09/06) CRIMINAL MINUETS - CHANGE OF PLEA ' 00 18

Initiais of Deputy Clerk: JAC
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United States District Court
Central District of California

UNITED STATES OF AMERICA vs. | Docket No. CR 15-0049-DOC
Defendant ~ MARLON SONGCO Social SecurityNe. 9 6 6 O
akas: _Songco, Marfon Pineda (Last 4 digits)

JUDGMENT ANI)- PROBATION/ C()I\*fﬂ\dl’l‘l\/‘[ ENT ORDER

MONTH DAY YEAR

In the presence of the attorney for the government, the defendant appeared in person on this date. 02 02 2017

COUNSEL Richard Goldman, DFPD

(Name of Counsel)

PLEA ] GUILTY, and the court beingr satisfied that there is a factual basis for the plea. |:I NOLO D NOT
‘ CONTENDERE GUILTY

There being a finding/verdict of GUILTY, defendant has been convicted as charged of the offense(s) of:

FINDING
Count 1, 18 U.S.C. § 371: Conspiracy to Commit Health Care Fraud of the Single-Count Information.

JUDGMENT | The Court asked whether there was any reason why judgment should not be pronounced. Because no sufficient cause to the

AND PROB/ | contrary was shown, or appeared to the Court, the Court adjudged the defendant guilty as charged and convicted and ordered
COMM that: Pursuant (o the Senlencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the defendant is hereby commitled to
ORDER the custody of the Bureau of Prisons to be imprisoned for a term of:

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay to the United States a special assessment of $100, which is due
immediately. Any unpaid balance shall be due during the period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per
quarter, and pursuant to the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program.

It is ordered that the defendant shall pay restitution in the total amount of $3,327,151 pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §
3663A. :

Defendant shall pay restitution in the total amount of $3,327,151 to victims as set forth in a separate victim Iist
prepared by the probation office which this Court adopts and which reflects the Court's determination of the amount of
restitution due to each victim, The victim list, which shall be forwarded to the fiscal section of the clerk’s office, shall
remain confidential to protect the privacy interests of the victims.

Restitution shall be due during the period of imprisonment, at the rate of not less than $25 per quarter, and pursuant
to the Bureau of Prisons' Inmate Financial Responsibility Program. If any amount of the restitution remains unpaid after
release from custody, nominal monthly payments of at least 10% of defendant's gross monthly income but not less than
$50, whichever is greater, shall be made during the period of supervised release and shall begin 30 days after the
commencement of supervision. Nominal restitution payments are ordered as the Court finds that the defendant's economic
circumstances do not allow for either immediate or future payment of the amount ordered.

The defendant shall be held jointly and severally liable with co-participants, Joseff Sales and Danniel Goyena
(Docket No. CR- 15CR00576) for the amount of restitution ordered in this judgment. The victims' recovery is limited to
the amount of their loss and the defendant's liability for restitution ceases if and when the victims receive full restitution.

CR-104 {docx 10/15) 7 JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER : Page 1of6
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USAvs. MARLON SONGCO _ Docket No.:  CR 15-0049-DOC

Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3612(f)(3)(A), interest on the restitution ordered is waived because the defendant does
not have the ability to pay interest. Payments may be subject to penalties for default and delinquency pursuant to 18
U.S.C. § 3612(g).

The defendant shall comply with General Order No. 01-05.

_ Pursuant to Guideline § 5E1.2(a), all fines are waived as the Court finds that the defendant has established that
he is unable to pay and is not likely to become able to pay any fine.

Pursuant to the Sentencing Reform Act of 1984, it is the judgment of the Court that the defendant, Marlon Songco,
is hereby committed on the single-count information to the custody of the Bureau of Prisons for a term of 12 months.

Upon release from imprisonment, the defendant shall be placed on supervised release for a term of three years
under the following terms and conditions:

1. The defendant shall comply with the rules and regulations of the United States Probation Office, General Order
05-02, and General Order 01-05, including the three special conditions delineated in General Order 01-05.

2. During the period of community supervision, the defendant shall pay the special assessment and restitution in
accordance with this judgment's orders pertaining to such payment.

3. The defendant shall apply all monies received from income tax refunds to the outstanding Court-ordered financial
obligation, In addition, the defendant shall apply all monies received from lottery winnings, inheritance,
judgments and any anticipated or unexpected financial gains to the outstanding Court-ordered f1nanczai
obligation.

4. The defendant shall not be employed by, affiliated with, own, control, volunteer for, or otherwise participate,

directly or indirectly, in any business involving federally funded or state funded health insurance or entitlement

- programs without the express written approval of the Probation Officer prior to engaging in such employment.

Further, the defendant shall provide the Probation Officer with access to any and all business records, client lists,

and other records pertaining to the operation of any business owned, in whole or in part, by the defendant, as
directed by the Probation Officer.

5. The defendant shall submit person and property to search and seizure at any time of the day or night by any law
enforcement. officer with or without a warrant and with or without reasonable or probable cause.

6. The defendant shall report to the United States Probation Office within 72 hours of his release from-custody.
7. The defendant shall report in person directly to the Court within 21 days of release from custody, at a date and
time to be set by the United States Probation Office, and thereafter report i person to the Court as directed during

his first year of supervised release.

8. The defendant shall not possess, have under his control, or have access to any firearm, explosive device, or other
‘dangerous weapon, as defined by federal, state, or local law, '

9. The defendant shall coolperate in the collection of a DNA sample from the defendant.

CR-104 (docx 10/15) JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Page 2 of 6
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10. The defendant shall reside at a residential re-entry center (RRC), under the community corrections
component/pre-release component, for a period not to exceed four (4) months, and shall comply with all rules and
regulations of the RRC, until discharged by the program director, with the approval of the Probation Officer.

The drug testing condition mandated by statute is suspended based on the Court's determination that the defendant
poses a low risk of future substance abuse

Tt is further ordered that the defendant surrender himself to the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons at
or before 12 noon on April 24, 2017. In the absence of such designation, the defendant shall report on or before the same
date and time, to the United States Marshal located at United States Court House, 411 West Fourth Street, Santa Ana,
California 92701-4516.

Defendant advised of right to appeal.

Defendant’s bond is exonerated upon surrender.

In addition to the special conditions of supervision imposed above, it is hereby ordered that the Standard Conditions
of Probation and Supervised Release within this judgment be imposed. The Court may change the conditions of
supervision, reduce or extend the period of supervision, and at any time during the supervision period or within the
maximum period permitted by law, may issue a warrant and revoke supervision for a violation occurring during the
supervision period. -

February 2, 2017 Alawit 8 (o

Date DAVID O. CARTER, U. S. District Judge

It is ordered that the Clerk deliver a copy of this Judgment and Probation/Commitment Order to the U.S, Marshal or
other qualified officer. :

- Clerk, U.S. District Court

February 2, 2017 By Deborah Goltz
Filed Date ' Deputy Clerk

CR-104 (docx 10/15) JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER Pape 3 of 6
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MARLON SONGCO

Docket No.:

CR 15-0049-DOC

The defendant shall comply with the standard conditions that have been adoptéd by this court (set forth below).

STANDARD CONDITIONS OF PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE

While the defendant is on probation or supervised release pursuant to this judgment:

The defendant shall not commit another Federal, state or local crime;

the defendant shall not leave the judicial district without the writien
permission of the court or probation officer;

the defendant shall report to the probation officer as directed by the
court or probation officer and shall submit a truthful and complete
written report within the first five days of each month;

the defendant shall answer truthfully all inquiries by the probation
officer and follow the instructions of the probation officer;

the defendant shall support his or her dependents and meet other
family responsibilities;

the defendant shali work regularly at a lawful occupation unless
excused by the probation officer for schooling, training, or other
acceptable reasons;

the defendant shall notify the probation officer at least 10 days prior
to any change in residence or employment; o

the defendant shall refrain from excessive vse of alcolol and shall
not purchase, possess, use, distribute, or administer any narcotic or
-other controlled substance, or any paraphernalia related to such
substances, except as prescribed by a physician;

the defendant shail not frequent places where controlled substances
are illegally sold, used, distributed or administered,;

10,

11.

12
13.

14,

15.

16.

the defendant shall not associate with any persons engaged in
criminal activily, and shall not associate with any person convicted
of a felony unless granted permission to do so by the probation
officer;

the defendant shall permit a probatien officer to visil him or her at
any time at home or elsewhere and shall permil confiscation of any
contraband observed in plain view by the probation officer;

the defendant shall notify the probation officer within 72 hours of
being arrested or questioned by a law enforcement officer;

the defendant shall not enter into any agreement to act as an informer
or a special agent of a law enforcement agency without the
permission of the court;

as directed by the probation officer, the defendant shall notify third
parfies of risks that may be occasioned by the defendant’s criminal
record or petsonal history or characleristics, and shall permit the
probation officer to make such notifications and to conform the
defendant’s compliance with such notification requirement;

the defendant shalf, upon release from any period of custody, repott
to the probation officer within 72 hours;

and, for felony cases only: not possess a firearm, destructive device,
or any other dangerous weapon.

CR-104 (doex 10/15)

JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER

Page 4 of 6
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[} The defendant will also comply with the following special conditions pursuant to General Order 01-05 (set forth below).
STATUTORY PROVISIONS PERTAINING TO PAYMENT AND COLLECTION OF FINANCIAL SANCTIONS

The defendant shall pay interest on a fine or restitution of more than $2,500, unless the court waives inferest or unless the fine or
restitution is paid in full before the fifteenth (15"} day after (he date of the judgment pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(f)(1). Payments may be
subject (o penalties for default and delinquency pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3612(g). Interest and penalties pcrlammg to restitution, however, are
not applicable for offenses completed prior to April 24, 1996.

It all or any portion of a fine or restitution ordered remains unpaid after the termination of superwsmn the defenddilt shall pay. the
balance as directed by the United States Attorney’s Office. 18 U.S.C. §3613.

The defendant shall notify the United States Attorney within thirty (30) days of any change in the defendant’s mailing address or
residence until all fines, restitution, costs, and special assessments are paid in full. 18 U.S.C. §3612(b)(1)(F).

The defendant shall notify the Court through the Probation Office, and notify the United States Attorney of any material change in
the defendant’s economic circumstances that might affect the defendant’s ability to pay a fine or restitution, as required by 18 U.S.C. §3664(k).
The Court may also accept such notification from the government or the victim, and may, on ils own motion or that of a party or the victim,
adjust the manner of payment of a fine or restitution-pursuvant to 18 U.5.C. §3664(k). See also 18 U.S.C. §3572(d)(3) and for probation 18
U.5.C. §3563(a)(7).

Payments shall be applied in the following order:

1. Special assessments pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3013;
2. Restitution, in this sequence (pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 3664(i}, all non-federal victims must be paid before the United
States is paid):
Non-federal victims (1nd1v1dual and corporale)
Providers of compensation to non-federal victims,
The United States as victim;
3. Fine;
4. Community restitution, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. §3663(u) and
5. Other penalties and costs.

SPECIAL CONDITIONS FOR PROBATION AND SUPERVISED RELEASE

. As directed by the Probation Gfficer, the defendani shall provide to the Probation Officer: (1) a signed release authorizing credit
report inquiries; {2) federal and state income tax returns or a signed release authorizing their disclosure; and (3} an accurate financial siatement,
with supporting documentation as to all assets, income and expenses of the defendant. In addilion, the defendant shall nol apply for any loan
ot open any line of credit without prior approval of the Probation Officer,

The defendant shall maintain one p'ersonal checking account. All of defendant’s income, “monetary gains,” or other pecﬁniary
proceeds shall be deposited info this account, which shall be used for payment of all personal expenses. Records of all other bank accounts,
including any business accounts, shall be disclosed to the Probation Officer upon request.

The defendant shall not transfer, sell, give away, or otherwise convey any asset with a fair market value in excess of $500 without
approval of the Probation Officer until all financial obligations imposed by the Court have been satisfied in. full.

These conditions are in addition to any other conditions imposed by this judgment.

CR-104 (docx 10/15) ' JUDGMENT & PROBATION/COMMITMENT ORDER PagcSol6




Case 2':15-cr-00049~DOC Document 58 Filed 02/02/17 Page 6 of 6 Page ID #:289

USA vs. MARLON SONGCO : Docket No.:  CR 15-0049-DOC

RETURN

I have executed the within Jadgment and Commitment as follovws:
Defendant delivered on to

Defendant noted on appeal on

Defendant released on
Mandate issued on

Defendant’s appeal determined on o
Defendant delivered on . to
at .
the institution designated by the Bureau of Prisons, with a certified copy of the within Judgment and Commitment.

United States Marshal

By
Date - Deputy Marshal

CERTIFICATE

1 hereby attest and certify this date that the foregoing document is a full, true and correct copy of the original on file in my office, and in my
legal custody.,

Clerk, U.S. District Couri

, By
Filed Date + Deputy Clerk

FOR U.S. PROBATION OFFICE USE ONLY

Upon a finding of violation of probation or supervised release, I understand that the court may (1) revoke supervision, (2) exiend the term of
supervision, and/or (3) modify lhe conditions of supervision.

These conditions have been read to me. I fully understand the conditions and have been provided a copy of them,

(Signed)
Defendant _ Date

U. 8. Probation Officer/Designated Witness: Dale
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